HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
May 02, 2001
1: 59 PM

TAPE HFC 01 - 111, Side A
TAPE HFC 01 - 111, Side B
TAPE HFC 01 - 112, Side A

CALL TO ORDER
Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:59 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative El don Mul der, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft

Represent ati ve John Davi es
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative John Harris
Representative Bill Hudson

Represent ati ve Ken Lancaster
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT
None

ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve John Coghi | I ; Bruce Johnson, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent;
Ri chard Mnkman, Parent, Juneau; Margo Warring, Parent,
Juneau; Getchen Kaiser, Staff, Representative Kertulla;
Vei da Forrest, Student, Juneau Douglas H gh School, Juneau;
Chris Knauss, Staff, Senator Pete Kelly; Jonpb Stewart,
Staff, Senator Donley; Deb Davidson, Staff, Senator Dave
Donl ey; Dave Steward, Division of Personnel, Departnent of
Adm ni stration; Bruce Johnson, Deputy Comm ssi oner,
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent; Randy Lorenz,
Pal mer .

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Matt Lovern, Anchorage; Debbie Gssiander, Menber, Anchorage
School Board; Jo Garrett, Supervisor, Gfted Prograns,
Anchorage School District; Barbara Wber, Anchorage School
District; Tanea | sham Teacher, Anchorage School District,
Anchor age; Jody Viscardi, Teacher, Anchorage School
District, Anchorage; Terri Semm er, Teacher, Anchorage
School District, Anchorage; Merri K. VanderPl oey, Teacher,
Anchorage School District, Anchorage; Panela Bickford,
Anchor age; Jean Scuito, Teacher, Anchorage School District,
Anchor age.

House Fi nance Committee 1 05/02/01 1:59 PM



SUMVARY

HB 71 "An Act relating to the education of children with
disabilities and of gifted children; relating to
the Governor's Council on Disabilities and Speci al
Educati on; making conform ng anendnents; and
providing for an effective date."”

CSHB 71 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a
"do pass" recomendation and with a previously
publi shed zero fiscal note by the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent.

CSSB 65(FIN)
"An Act requiring a study regardi ng equal pay for
equal work of certain state enpl oyees.™
CSSB 65(FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmmittee with a
"do pass" recomendation and wth previously
published fiscal inpact note by the Senate Rules
Comm ttee for Departnment of Adm nistration.

CSSB 86( FI'N)
"An Act relating to enploynent of teachers who
have subject-matter expertise; and providing for
an effective date.™
CSSB 86( FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmittee with a
"do pass" recomendation and with a previously
publi shed zero fiscal note by the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent.

#hb71

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 71

"An Act relating to the education of children wth
disabilities and of gifted children; relating to the
Governor's Counci | on Disabilities and  Speci al
Education; making conform ng amendnents; and providing
for an effective date."

BRUCE JOHNSQN, DEPUTY COWMM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON
AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT testified in support of HB 71. The
departnment worked with the Governor’s Council on Special
Education and Disabilities, PARENTS, Inc., the D sability
Law Center, and school district representatives to obtain
their input in drafting |legislation governing children with
disabilities. The departnent also solicited information and
feedback from parents and others representing gifted
chil dren.

M. Johnson noted that HB 71 acconplishes several inportant
purposes for children with disabilities. First and forenost,
the HESS CS for HB 71 updates the state special education

statute in accordance with the federal statutes — | DEA 97.
The HESS CS for HB 71 helps ensure that children wth
disabilities wi || conti nue to receive appropriate

House Fi nance Committee 2 05/02/01 1:59 PM



educational services and that Alaska wll continue to be
eligible for federal special education funds. For FY 02,
these funds are expected to total nore than $19 nmillion
dollars. He noted that HB 71 in its original form nore
clearly differentiated the federal and state requirenents
for providing educational services to children wth
disabilities from the state requirenents for providing
educational services to gifted children.

The HESS Committee Substitute for HB 71 is silent on the
education of gifted students. School districts would
continue to receive funds to provide services for gifted
students through the 20% “add-on” provision in the
foundation fornmula. The 20 percent "add-on" covers the
education of children with disabilities, gifted education
vocati onal education and bilingual education.

M. Johnson observed that the departnent applauds the
efforts of various conmttees to help Al aska conply with the
federal statutes addressing children with disabilities. The
departnent anticipates that with the passage of HB 71 the
U S Departnent of Education would find Alaska in full
conpliance with federal requirenents. He encouraged nenbers
to consider an anmendnent that would require gifted education
prograns in all districts, wth details determned at the
district |evel.

MATT LOVERN, ANCHORACE testified via teleconference. He
expressed concern with the deletion of Article 3A: Education
for Gfted Children. M. Lovern stressed the inportance of
the program to parents and children. He enphasized the
i nportance of challenging gifted children. He maintained
t hat busi ng should be provided to the program

DEBBI E OSSI ANDER, MEMBER, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL BQOARD testified
via teleconference. She noted that the Board is concerned
with the elimnation of the requirenent for gifted services
and related busing. She stressed that if these needs aren't
nmet that there would be increased dropout rates, chronic
under achi evenent and behavi or problens J[anbng gifted
children]. She mintained that the right to independent
eval uation, challenges to placenent, regular famlies of
gifted children would use reevaluation of needs and the
right to appeal pl acenent . Anchor age woul d | ose
approxi mately $220 thousand dollars if [busing for gifted
and talented students] is no |longer required. She added that
t hey have concerns with the due process hearing | anguage and
felt that it would drive up the district's costs. Special
Education costs continue to escalate independently. She
expressed concern with the elimnation of the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent's deci sion-maki ng regarding
residential placenent out-of-state. The legislation has no
mention of discipline, which is one of the Anchorage Schoo
Board's mmjor issues. She maintained that the |egislation

House Fi nance Committee 3 05/02/01 1:59 PM



| acks clarity as to how the district can assess Medicare.
She urged that the legislation be retained in Commttee.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde thought that the legislation only renoved
the state mandate for gifted and tal ented prograns. He asked
i f Anchorage would offer the programif the state nmandate is
renmoved. Ms. Ossiander responded that, as a school board
menber, she would continue to support it. She stated that
w t hout the nmandate they would | ose rei nbursenent for busing
and the rights of famlies to appeal decisions outside of
the district.

Representative Croft questioned if the district would |ose
state or federal reinbursenent for busing. M. Gssiander
explained that there is no federal funding. The Anchorage
school district would |ose access to state funding for
transportation. Representative Croft concluded that the
progranms woul d be viewed as optional. M. Gssiander affirmnmed
and noted that the state only reinburses for essential
transportation. Transportation to school and transportation
for special education purposes are considered essential.
Under the legislation, transportation of students to
participate in gifted prograns would no |onger qualify for
rei nbur senent .

In response to a question by Representative Croft, M.
Ossi ander noted concerns wth the due process hearing
| anguage contained in AS 14.30.193. As outlined in the bill
hearing officers could potentially live outside of the
district, which would result in significant travel costs. A
one-tiered hearing process has potential for escalating
costs for districts because there would be a potential to go
to Superior Court nore quickly. She nmaintained that the
| egi slation could be inproved and offered to send witten
testi nony.

JO GARRETT, SUPERVI SOR, G FTED PROGRAMS, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL
DI STRICT, ANCHORAGE testified via teleconference. She
expressed concern with the issue of equity. She noted that
children with disabilities were addressed and enphasi zed t he
need of addressing children with exceptionalities, of which
gifted is one. She encouraged legislators to mke sound
educational decisions based on what is best for the
education of children and not [base their decisions] on
financial issues. She spoke against the renoval of Article
3A from HB 71. There are 2,500 thousand gifted students in
Anchorage. She stressed that there is a |lack of regard for a
popul ation that includes gifted students. She naintained
that Districts with one or tw students would not receive
services. Services in Anchorage would be elimnated due to
the lack of transportation reinbursenent. She stressed that
hel ping gifted students |ifts all students. She urged that
the bill be held.

House Fi nance Committee 4 05/02/01 1:59 PM



BARBARA  VEBER, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DI STRI CT, ANCHORAGE
testified via teleconference. She used the analogy of a
W nning dog team She stressed that gifted children are the
talent that will becone our future | eaders.

TAMEA | SHAM TEACHER, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DI STRICT, ANCHORAGE
testified via teleconference. She urged that Article 3A be
put back into the bill. She maintained that gifted education
needs a state mandate and transportation needs to be
provi ded.

JODY VI SCARDI, TEACHER, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DI STRI CT, ANCHORAGE
testified via teleconference. She noted that gifted children
are the nost at risk student population for suicide or
dropout. Gfted children learn the |east anount of new
information in a school day of all students. Gfted students
need to be challenged to use their abilities. She maintained
that they are handi capped by the discrepancy between their
high abilities and the instruction level in the regular
education cl assroom

TERRI SEMMLER, TEACHER, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DI STRI CT, ANCHORAGE
testified via tel econference in support of including Article
3A. She maintained that nost people do not recognize the
intellectual, enotional and psychological struggle gifted
children have on a daily basis while waiting for a
chal | engi ng education to be offered to them G fted students
are capable of nastering curriculum far above their grade
| evel so they wait for their classmates to catch up. They
have high rates of alcohol and drug consunption and are at
risk for suicide and dropout.

MERRI K. VANDERPLOEY, EDUCATOR, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DI STRICT,
ANCHORAGE testified via teleconference. She expressed
concern with the elimnation of Article 3A. She stressed the
efforts of Anchorage teachers, parents and other interested
parties in keeping gifted education wthin the special
education statutes. She noted that a decision was nmade to
keep both prograns together on a state |evel. She naintained
that the financial responsibility cannot be passed solely to
the school district. She observed that there is a threat of
tax caps and dissatisfaction wth increased property taxes.

PAMVELA Bl CKFORD, ANCHORAGE testified via tel econference. She
spoke in support of elimnating section 4, which anends AS
14. 30. 186(e). This section provides that parents cannot be
forced to receive services for hone-schooled children. She
felt that parents would be forced to hone school children by
the school district if the district could not provide
services. She maintained that the provisions regarding the
right to appeal are unclear.

JEAN SCU TO TEACHER, ANCHORAGE SCHOCOL DI STRICT, ANCHORAGE
testified via tel econference. She expressed concern with the

House Fi nance Committee 5 05/02/01 1:59 PM



elimnation of Article 3A. She noted that it is difficult to
nmeet the needs of kids on the high end in the regular
cl assroons. She enphasi zed that kids that don’'t fit into the
regul ar classroomfind a niche in the gifted classroom

RI CHARD MONKMAN, PARENT, JUNEAU testified in support of the
inclusion of Article 3A. He stressed that gifted children
have special needs, such as the need to be challenged,
stinul ated and engaged. If they are not engaged they will be
di sengaged. Many gifted children drop out.

Representative Hudson asked if the services are outside of
the regular classroom teaching. M. Mnkman explained that
the gifted programhas its own classroom Children are taken
fromtheir regular classroomfor a period of tine.

MARGO WARRI NG PARENT, JUNEAU testified in support of the
reinsertion of Article 3A. The state of Al aska has a 30-year
hi story of recognizing the needs of gifted children. She
mai ntai ned that school districts with the fewest kids and
the smal |l est resources woul d be dropped off first.

GRETCHEN KAI SER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KERTULLA provided
testinmony. Currently, Alaska statutes provide direction to
public school districts toidentify and provide educational
services to gifted children. About 5,000 Al askan Kkids
t hroughout the state are identified as gifted because of
their outstanding intellect and abilities. The state has an
obligation to provide educational |eadership. As a policy
matter; the state has recognized the needs of gifted
children for 30 years. Al Alaskan children deserve an
education geared to their abilities so that they can
maxi mze their potential. The bar needs to be raised for
hi gher ability children. Wthout an educational program
whi ch provides adequate stinulation, these children are
often bored and not infrequently becone underachi evers. She
acknowl edged the very serious needs of children wth
di sabilities, but urged recognition of the speci al
educati onal needs of another group of Al askan children.

VEI DA FORREST, STUDENT, JUNEAU DOUGLAS H GH SCHOOL, JUNEAU
testified in support of gifted progranms. She shared her
frustration at being in classes bel ow her achi evenent |evel.
She felt that she would not have been in the program w t hout
testing. She noted that children have dropped out for |ack
of chall enge. She spoke in support of retaining Article 3A

Vi ce-Chair Bunde pointed out that the legislation speaks to
the state mandate. He suggested that the Juneau School
District could continue to test. M. Forrest acknow edged
that the Juneau School District would continue testing but
felt that smaller schools would suffer.

House Fi nance Committee 6 05/02/01 1:59 PM



In response to a question by Representative Hudson, Ms.
Forrest discussed her participation in the program She
observed that, through the program she is an intern in
Representative Kerttula s office.

Representative Croft MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent 1. Amendnent 1
woul d add Article 3A back into the bill

TAPE HFC 01 - 111, Side B

M. Johnson acknow edged the concern of parents regarding
the inclusion of Article 3A. Parents feel that oversight is
inportant in order to ensure that districts provide
services. Parents also want to have authority to oversee
districts in the wevent that they do not take the
exceptionality seriously. These concerns were addressed in
the original legislation. He observed that the original bil
contained Article 3A

Vice-Chair Bunde felt that gifted and talented prograns
shoul d be addressed in separate | egislation.

M. Johnson noted that the gifted comunity felt that there
needed to be oversight of the districts. The departnent
estimated that over si ght of the program would be
approximately $103 thousand dollars. This would provide a
hal f-tinme position in the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnment with sone support staff to | ook over the program
and provide sone routine nonitoring visits to schools on a
contract basis.

Representative Croft questioned if the fiscal cost included
oversight of the children with disability program M.
Johnson clarified that there is no oversight of the state's
di sabl ed programincluded in the fiscal note.

Representative Croft observed that testinony indicated that
the state would not pay to bus [gifted and talented]
students and that the cost to Anchorage would be $200
t housand dol lars. M. Johnson acknow edged that Anchorage is
the district nost engaged in transporting students with the
exceptionality. He mintained that districts would be
eligible for reinbursenment through the related service
cl ause of the current |egislation.

In response to a question by Co-Chair Milder, M. Johnson
clarified that the departnment supports the inclusion of
gifted and talented services. The departnent is wlling to
seek mddle ground if the anmendnent is not acceptable. He
stressed the inportance of services for gifted students and
noted that the state of Al aska has a 30-year history of
providing services for these students. He noted that the
departnent proposed |anguage in the proceeding year, which
woul d require school districts to recogni ze t he

House Fi nance Committee 7 05/02/01 1:59 PM



exceptionality and plan prograns for these students. Details
woul d be the responsibility of the separate school districts
W thout state oversight. Co-Chair Milder agreed that it
shoul d be a local option and responsibility.

Represent ati ve Hudson questioned if the prograns are offered
universally around the state. M. Johnson noted that they
are offered universally around the state, but the wurban
areas have sufficient nunbers to do nore than a pull out
program

Vi ce- Chai r Bunde observed that federal funds cannot be spent
on gifted and talented prograns. State funding provides an
additional 20 percent for gifted and talented and speci al
educational students. M. Johnson affirnmed that the 20
percent would remain. The 20 percent "add-on" is for gifted,

speci al , vocati onal , and bi I i ngual educat i on. The
| egi slation would not change the foundation fornula. The
funds are non categorical. School districts have the

responsibility and authority to spend the funds in any
manner that they want.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL, MEMBER, HOUSE EDUCATI ON AND
SOCI AL SERVICES COW TTEE provided information. He noted
that the House Education and Social Services Conmttee heard
testinony on the need for [gifted and special] services. He
observed that services are disabled students is a civil
right. Gfted and talented services are not a civil right.
He maintained that the issues are separate. Gfted and
talented prograns are a local option discussion. The
Individuals with Disabilities Act is a national civil rights
di scussion. He asked the Conmttee to keep the issues
separate and stated that he is commtted to working on the
i ssue. He observed that the authority still remains with the
| ocal school districts.

Representative John Davies questioned why the discussion
cannot occur within the sanme piece of |egislation. He noted
that the issues are related in a nunber of ways.

Representative Coghill acknowl edged that there are sone
simlarities but pointed out that one calls for inclusion
and one calls for exclusion. He added that one calls for a
civil right action that is closely nonitored and includes
parents, while the other |eaves the debate open. He stressed
that the legislation brings the state into conformty wth
federal authorization, which brings noney into the state
The anount the state wants to put into the gifted and
talented programis an entirely different issue.

Representative Croft questioned if additional |egislation
has been introduced. Representative Coghill stated that he
had not introduced separate |egislation. Representative
Croft questioned why it nakes sense to pursue one issue

House Fi nance Committee 8 05/02/01 1:59 PM



w thout the other. Representative Coghill noted that the
intent is to clean up statutes before federal funding is
| ost .

Representative John Davies questioned if the legislation

would still contain the necessary cleanup for federal
requi renents of separation with the adoption of Anendnent 1.
M. Johnson affirnmed that legislation would still neet the

federal requirement with the adoption of the anendnent.
Representative John Davies argued that the program shoul d
remain in tack until the debate occurs.

Co-Chair Mul der argued that (school districts) should be
allowed to choose how to provide services. Representative
Hudson summari zed that funding could still be provided, but
that the mandate woul d be renoved.

Representative Wi taker asked for clarification regarding
funding for gifted and talented prograns. Vice-Chair Bunde
noted that there are two funding streans: federal funding,
whi ch cannot be used for gifted and talented services, and
state funding for special needs, which is still received by
school districts.

Representative Whitaker observed that there would be no
mandate for school districts to use funding for these
progr ans.

Co-Chair WIIlianms observed that Representative Coghill has
i ndi cated that he would work on further |egislation.

In response to a question by Representative Witaker, M.
Johnson noted that there is no recogni zed organi zed group at
the state level that speaks for gifted and talented
children. There are groups at the local level. Sonme are
advi sory groups forned by the |ocal school districts. The
makeup tends to be associated teachers, parents, and forner
students.

M. Johnson observed that the nunber of gifted children is
approxi mately 10 percent of the population and is sonewhere
bet ween 5,000 and 13, 000 thousand students.

In response to a question by Representative John Davies, M.
Johnson clarified that federal funding has never been
available for gifted and talented prograns. Under the
instructional wunit fornmula, funding was provided for the
support of identified students. Under the current foundation
formula, there is an additional 20 percent added on for
gifted, special, vocational, and bilingual education. Under
both formulas a l|ocal school district could use the funds
any way they feel is necessary.

House Fi nance Committee 9 05/02/01 1:59 PM



Vice-Chair Bunde questioned the percentage of federal
funding for special education. M. Johnson answered that the
state expects approximately $19 mllion dollars for special
education from a $700 mllion dollar budget. He clarified
that the federal funds have never been used to support
gifted and talented prograns. The state conm ngled
responsibilities. The state received federal funds to
provi de technical assistance and nonitoring of special
education prograns around the state. The departnent while
doing this business also did the business of gifted and
tal ented prograns. The nonconpliance issue did not stem from
i nappropriate use of federal funds by the districts, but the
departnment's wuse of funds used for the nonitoring and
techni cal assistance of children with disabilities.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde summarized that the |egislation would not
take funds away from gifted and talented services. M.
Johnson noted that questions [relating to gifted and
tal ented services] asked of a person being paid with federal
special education funds would be deferred to the deputy
director of Teaching and Learning Support. There is no
fundi ng stream

Representative \Witaker observed that policy is being
changed by the renoval of the mandate and questioned the
effect. M. Johnson acknow edged that the full ramfication
i s unknown. The departnent has not had funds to nonitor or
support the program on the local level for the past three
years.

Representative Whitaker observed that gifted and talented
programs exist in all school districts. M. Johnson affirmnmed
that every school district has provided a planned service
for delivering educational services to its identified gifted
and talented population. The prograns differ wdely.
Representati ve Wi taker questioned what guarantees exist to
assure that these children would receive services. M.
Johnson noted that there would be no state oversight. He
reiterated that a state mandate could be provided w thout
state oversight.

Representative Witaker summarized that the |egislation
would present a policy of not recognizing gifted and
tal ented students. M. Johnson noted that the responsibility
woul d be shifted to a local l|evel. Representative Witaker
stated that there would be no |l ocal responsibility.

Co-Chair WIIlianms questioned how long it would take for the
prograns to fall apart if the mandate is renoved. M.
Johnson stated that it would differ community by comunity.
He noted that staffing decisions for the next year have been
identified and felt that prograns would be retained in the
next year. He did not think that there was support for the

House Fi nance Committee 10 05/02/01 1:59 PM



theory that prograns would fall apart in small schools over
| ar ger school s.

Representative Croft spoke in support of the anmendnent. He
observed that gifted and talented prograns would be
elimnated [w thout the anendnent] by the provision on page
15, section 40. He acknow edged that progranms vary w dely.
The questioned is whether the state mandates the service. He
noted that school districts could elimnate progranms. He
recount ed personal experiences with dyslexia and boredomin
the classroom He did not think that there was a strong
commtnment to pursue legislation in the follow ng year and
argued in support or retaining a state mandate.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Hudson, Moses, \Whitaker, Croft, Davi es,
OPPOSED: Harris, Lancaster, Bunde, Foster, WIIlians, Ml der

The MOTI ON FAI LED (5-6).
Representati ve John Davies MOVED to ADOPT Anmendnent 2.

Prograns for gifted children. Every school district
shal | establish educational services for gifted
children that provide for student identification,
student eligibility, student learning plans, and
par ent al and student participation, including an
appropriate review process, consistent wth regul ati ons
adopt ed by the departnent.

Representative Davies explained that the anendnent would
require school districts to establish prograns for gifted
children, but allow themto decide how the services would be
provi ded.

Co- Chair Mul der MOVED to AMEND Anmendnent 2 to change “shall”
to “may”.

Representative John Davies argued against the anmendnent to
t he anendnent. He enphasi zed that a portion of state support
is for gifted and tal ented students.

Co-Chair WIIlians spoke in support of the anendnent to the
amendnent. Representative John Davies argued that the
anmendnent to the amendnment woul d gut the amendnent.

TAPE HFC 01 - 112, Side A
Representative Whitaker argued against the anmendnent. He
enphasi zed that the anmendnent to the anendnent would

establish the status quo until there is a better idea of the
af fect of the change.

House Fi nance Committee 11 05/02/01 1:59 PM



Co- Chair Miul der W THDREW hi s anmendnent to Anendnent 2.
Represent ati ve Hudson suggested the addition of “consider”.

Representative John Davies stated that the change would
effectively gut the anendnent. He argued that every district
is being provided funding for the purpose. He stressed that
the change to "consider"” would take away the parents’ right
to insist on services.

There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON, Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Representative John Davies observed that a title change nmay
be required with the adoption of Anendnent 2.

Co- Chair Mul der noted that funding is already provided and a
fiscal note woul d not be needed.

Representative Foster MOVED to report CSHB 71 (FIN) out of
Commttee wth the acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO
OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

CSHB 71 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with a previously published zero fisca
note by the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent.
#sb65

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 65(FIN)

"An Act requiring a study regarding equal pay for equal
work of certain state enpl oyees.™

JOVD STEWART, STAFF, SENATOR DONLEY testified in support of
the legislation on behalf of the sponsor. He noted that the
| egislation would provide for a pay equity study. He
observed that there is evidence that there is pay disparity
bet ween nmen and wonen working in state governnent and in the
state. A 1997 study showed that wonen were paid 35 percent
| ess than nen. Wonen in state governnent nade 73 percent of
what nmen were making. Wnen in |ocal governnment nade
approximately 76 - 77 percent of a man's salary. It is the
sponsor's intent that the study exam nes the question of
equal pay for equal work anong state enployees. He
enphasi zed that the focus should be on equal pay for sane
work, which is defined in the same nmanner as equal pay for
conparabl e work: The principle requires equal conpensation
for jobs that require substantially the sane skills, effort
and responsibility and are performed under simlar working
conditions. A pay equity study wll help determne if and
where inequities exist and provide an opportunity to conply
wth state and federal Ilaw. Assuring that state pay
practices are not influenced by gender is good public policy
and will pronote fairness in the workplace. Voluntary pay
equity is nore cost effective than a court ordered pay

House Fi nance Committee 12 05/02/01 1:59 PM



equity adjustnent. Discrimnation suits tend to be very
costly.

M. Stewart conpared pay equity issues in Wshington and
M nnesota. Washington State failed to act on the inequities
found in their pay. Mnnesota phased in equity adjustnents
through legislation and arbitration. It cost approxi mtely
$41 mllion dollars in the state of Mnnesota over four
years. Washington state litigation costs were approxi mately
$106 million dollars.

M. Stewart observed that a study in the February 1999 issue
of Al aska Economic Trends entitled The Gender Gap in Earning
observed the difference between pay scales but did not
determ ne the cause of the inequities.

Represent ati ve Hudson questioned if the courts are requiring
action. M. Stewart did not know of any court order.

Representative Foster observed that mnorities receive
inferior jobs and pay, especially mnority wonen.

M. Stewart acknow edged inequity in pay to mnorities. He
explained that the legislation would pertain to state
enpl oyees.

Representative John Davies MOWED to ADOPT a conceptua
anmendnent to include mnorities in the study.

M. Stewart observed that the House State Affairs Committee
decided not to take up the issue in the current |egislation
since it would raise the fiscal cost.

Representative John Davies argued that the greatest fisca
cost would be the collection of data. He stressed that the
fiscal inpact of the increnental analysis to determne if it
applies to mnorities wuld be relatively small. He
mai ntained that it wuld be relatively sinply to add
mnority status [to the |egislation].

DEB DAVI DSON, STAFF, SENATOR DAVE DONLEY, referenced the
di scussion on the addition of race to the legislation in the
House State Affairs Commttee. The study under the bil
would look at job classifications and identify those that
have a pay disparity to determne why the disparity exists.
A larger study would need to be conpleted if a difference is
not determ ned.

SENATOR DAVE DONLEY, SPONSOR provided information on the
| egi slation. He asserted that nultiple variables woul d make
the study nore conpl ex. He noted that studies in 24 other
states were I|imted to gender. The statutory sections
referenced in the |egislation address gender not race. The
decision was nmade in the House State Affairs Committee to

House Fi nance Committee 13 05/02/01 1:59 PM



not include_race. The intent is to address the issue in the
nost econom ¢ naenner.

DAVE STEWARD, DIVISION OF PERSONNEL, DEPARTMENT  OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, expl ained that the fiscal note is based on
sanpling job classifications. The inclusion of race would
requi re an expansion of the sanple collection, which m ght
i npact the fiscal note.

Represent ati ve John Davi es asked what sanpling would entail.
M. Steward explained that job classifications would be
reviewed for gender base. The state's job classification
system assigns pay rates based on the kind of work that is
done. Race or gender is not considered. Descriptions of work
and m nimum qualifications required would be sanpled from a
variety of the job famlies that the state classifies.
There are no paraneters to |ook at whether popul ation
density of race and gender m xtures influences the rate of
pay. The gender base population is fairly even around the
state but race based population is not.

Senat or Donl ey asserted that the addition of mnority status
woul d conplicate the study. He noted that research for the
| egi sl ati on was based on gender studies in other states.

Representative Hudson agreed with the prime sponsor. He
acknow edged that it would require a far nore expansive
study. He observed that a gender base study would be
strai ghtforward.

Representative John Davies pointed out that it may be
necessary to correct for age and mnority status to
understand the gender issue. He questioned if the study
coul d be done adequately on the |imted basis.

Senator Donley noted that contact with contractors for other
state, which have conpiled simlar studies helped the
Department of Admnistration to develop their fiscal note

He commended work by the Departnment of Administration in
m nimzing the costs on the fiscal note.

Representative Croft agreed that expansion would affect the
fiscal note.

Senat or Donl ey spoke against expanding the scope of the
| egislation. He stressed that expansion [of the bill to
include race] would require a great anmount of work and
research

Representative Foster spoke in support of the study and
expressed his hope that "we are able to do sonmething wth
t he study.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion to include race.

House Fi nance Committee 14 05/02/01 1:59 PM



IN FAVOR: Foster, Croft, Davies
OPPOSED: Harris, Hudson, Lancaster, Mses, Bunde, WIIlians

Co-Chair Mul der and Representative Whitaker were absent from
the vote.

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-6).

Representative Davies expressed his support of t he
| egi sl ati on.

Representative Foster MOVED to report CSSB 65(FIN) out of
Commttee wth the acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSSB 65(FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with previously published fiscal inpact
note by the Senate Rules Committee for Department of
Adm ni stration.

#sb86

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 86(FIN)

"An Act relating to enploynent of teachers who have
subj ect-matter experti se; and providing for an
effective date.”

CHRI S KNAUSS , STAFF, SENATOR PETE KELLY, spoke in support of
the legislation on behalf of the sponsor. He noted that
there are nunmerous accounts of teacher shortages in the
state of Alaska. Senate Bill 86 would put teachers wth
subject matter experience in the classroom He reviewed the
process of how a subject natter teacher gets into the
cl assroom and becones a certified regular teacher. To be a
subj ect mat t er t eacher the applicant nmust have a
baccal aureate degree and at |east five years work experience
in the subject matter to be taught. Once enploynent is
gai ned, subject matter teachers would be required to take a
conpetency exam and submt to fingerprints for a crimna
background check. They would then be required to have an
experience teacher supervise them as a nentor. During this
time they would have a limted certificate. During the year
they would be required to enroll in a curriculumto gain a
regul ar teaching certificate. They would have two years to
conplete a regular teaching certificate.

In response to a question by Vice-Chair Bunde, M. Knauss
noted that the real need is in rural school districts.

Representative John Davies clarified that subject matter

teachers could only renmain in this category for two years
w t hout becoming certified.

House Fi nance Committee 15 05/02/01 1:59 PM



BRUCE JOHNSON, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON
AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT provided information on the
| egi slation. The departnent supports the bill. There are
students that take advantage of the MAT (Master of Arts)
program A prerequisite degree for an MAT degree is a
bachelor degree in a subject area. He observed that MAT
students are not paid; these people would be paid while they
are securing their regular Type A certificate. He thought
that [subject matter teachers] would generally be at the
secondary | evel

Representative Davies asked if there would be a nentor
teacher for both of the years. M. Johnson noted that it is
required for the first year and added that there are
prograns that should hel p support the nentor rel ationship.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde observed that the candidate nust take a
conpet ency exam nation, and questioned what the test would
| ook |ike. M. Johnson agreed that the candi date woul d have
to pass the exam and noted that it would be adm nistered at
the local level. They would also have to pass the state
conpetency test in a tinely fashion.

M. Johnson expl ained that discussions with the University
of Al aska envision a startup sumrer program prior to going
on the job. They would do an audi o conference and distance

delivered course during the vyear. The goal is not to
overburden them so that their studies distract from their
capacity to be successful in the classroom They would

resunme studies during the summer. The departnent envisions
conpletions during two summers and an academ c year.

In response to a question by Representative Hudson, M.
Johnson noted that there are shortages in math and science
classes. He stated that the door could be opened to all
candidates that neet the requirenents. Limted candi dates
have been a concern. Representative Davies agreed that there
is a shortage of qualified teachers. He questi oned how many
MAT students would take the program \V/ g Johnson
acknow edged that it would all ow MAT students to continue on
a paid basis. Representative Davies thought that there may
be nore demand for the programthan envisioned.

RANDY LORENZ, PALMER spoke in support of the |legislation. He
observed that his wife has a master's degree in Library
Sciences. She is not able to get a Type A teaching
certificate in Library Sciences because the University of
Al aska does not offer a Library of Science degree. She
cannot get her certification wthout quitting her job and
going to another state. There are few qualified librarians
in the Mat-Su Valley. The legislation would allow her to get
a type A teaching certificate while remaining in her job
There are three other persons with Library Science degrees

House Fi nance Committee 16 05/02/01 1:59 PM



in the Mat-Su. The legislation would allow his wife to get a
type A teaching certificate.

Representative Foster MOVED to report CSSB 86 (FIN) out of
Commttee wth the acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSSB 86(FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recomendation and with a previously published zero fiscal
note by the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent.
#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 4:20 p.m

House Fi nance Committee 17 05/02/01 1:59 PM



